
1 

 

Wake County Board of Commissioners 

Growth, Land Use, and Environmental Committee 

June 11, 2018 

4:30 p.m. 

Wake County Justice Center, Room 2800 

 

Commissioners Present:  

John Burns-Chair 

Sig Hutchinson-Vice Chair 

Matt Calabria 

Jessica Holmes 

  

Wake County Staff Present:  

David Ellis, County Manager; Johnna Rogers, Chief Operating Officer; Denise Foreman, 

Assistant County Manager; Frank Cope, Community Services Director; Chris Dillon, 

Assistant County Manager; Ben Canada, Assistant to the County Manager; Scott 

Warren, County Attorney; Dr. Jennifer Federico, Animal Services Director; Dr. Joseph 

Threadcraft, Environmental Services Director; David Goodwin, General Services 

Director; Mark Forestieri, Facilities, Design and Construction Director; Tim Maloney, 

Planning, Development & Inspections Director; Chris Snow, Parks, Recreation and 

Open Space Director; Kevin Witchger, Facilities Engineer; John Roberson, Solid Waste 

Management Director; Alice Avery, Communications Specialist; Jennifer Heiss, 

Communications Specialist; Denise Hogan, Clerk to the Board; Yvonne Gilyard, Deputy 

Clerk to the Board, and Michelle Cerett, Executive Assistant.  

 

Others Present:  

 

Meeting Called to Order 

Commissioner Burns called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 

 

Approval of the Minutes 

 

Commissioner Calabria moved, seconded by Commissioner Hutchinson, to approve the 

Growth, Land Use, and Environmental Committee minutes of the April 9, 2018 meeting. 

The minutes were approved unanimously.  

 

Mr. Dave Goodwin, Director, General Services Administration, provided an introduction 

for today’s agenda item. 

 



2 

 

 
He shared the mandates of the 100 percent clean energy resolution. 

 

 
 

He shared the staff approach to determining the possibilities for clean energy.  

 
 

 

 



3 

 

Mr. Goodwin shared the organizational feasibility. 

 

 
 

Commissioner Burns asked Mr. Scott Warren, County Attorney, if there is a statute that 

prohibits the Commissioners from mandating 100 percent clean energy. Mr. Warren 

said commissioners do not have the authority to mandate clean energy for anything 

other than in county facilities. 

 

Mr. Kevin Witchger, Energy Manager, shared the technical feasibility. 

 
 

He shared the recommended methods for the 100 percent clean energy to be 

successful. 

 



4 

 

 
 

He shared information regarding wind and solar energy in our area of North Carolina. 

 
 

Mr. Witchger shared the methodology to convert to solar energy. 

 
 

He shared a chart of the current energy consumption in Wake County. Mr. Witchger 

said these figures are based on current use. 



5 

 

 
 

He shared information on the potential for solar PV in all county facilities. 

 

 
 

He shared the on-site limitations to the conversion. Commissioner Calabria asked how 

additional downtown buildings may affect these efforts by 2050. Mr. Witchger said that 

will be discussed later in the presentation. 



6 

 

 
 

He shared the technical challenges to the conversion of all county buildings. (Three 

slides) Mr. Goodwin said a panel of 190 acres would be needed to provide solar energy 

to the four downtown county buildings and all the fleet vehicles. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Mr. Witchger shared the possibilities for off-site solar PV. 

 
 

 



8 

 

He shared what the path would look like to reach the 100 percent goal for county 

buildings. 

 

 
 

He shared the technical feasibility of reaching the 100 percent clean energy by 2050 

goal. He said it is staff’s opinion that the plan is not feasible.  

 
 

Mr. Witchger shared the economic feasibility of the on-site versus the off-site methods. 

 



9 

 

 
He shared the conclusion and staff recommendation. 

 
 

Mr. Goodwin said energy efficient efforts are being done in new county buildings.  

 

Commissioner Hutchinson said the county has made a significant change in energy 

efficiency in the past few years. He said even though the county can’t mandate 

residents, he feels the county is setting a good example with these efforts. He feels 

endorsing the idea of clean energy is very important.  

 

Commissioner Calabria suggested revising the wording of the resolution to encourage it 

rather than mandate it.  

 

Commissioner Burns said the state of New Jersey has committed to 100 percent clean 

energy by 2030, but they have not revealed their plan to reach that goal.  

 

Commissioner Calabria asked if it is feasible to do some buildings rather than all of 

them. Mr. Goodwin said the guideline the commissioners just adopted recently enables 

staff to do solar power on all new buildings. He said it is possible to identify certain 

existing buildings to focus on converting.  



10 

 

 

Commissioner Hutchinson said the adoption of the resolution endorses citizens to work 

towards using clean energy.  

 

Commissioner Burns suggested the committee work on language revisions and present 

the resolution at the July meeting. 

 

Commissioner Burns thanked staff for their work on their project and for providing 

adequate information.  

 

Mr. David Ellis, County Manager, said an obtainable goal is important.  

 

Mr. Goodwin said staff has been directed to be proactive. He said the 100 percent goal 

may not be met, but significant progress will be made.  

 

Commissioner Holmes said this work is very interesting, and obtainable goals are 

important. 

 

Mr. Goodwin said staff routinely monitors all county buildings for energy efficiency.  

 

Mr. John Roberson, Solid Waste Director, shared an update on the 2018 Solid Waste 

Action plan.  

 
He provided a draft of the Landfill Life Extension Study for committee members to 

review. He said franchising was considered for the entire county, but was determined it 

is not feasible at this time. He said it will be evaluated again in the future. 

 

He shared an overview of the Solid Waste Division operations. 



11 

 

 

 
 

 

He shared various outreach and educational programs available.  

 

 
 

Mr. Roberson shared background information on the South Wake Landfill. 

 



12 

 

 
 

 

He shared the various phases of use for the landfill. 

 

 
 

He shared the life expectancy of the landfill. He said staff completes an annual 

evaluation of the landfill.  

 



13 

 

 
 

 

Mr. Roberson shared the Board of Commissioner goals and objectives as it relates to 

the landfill. 

 

 
 

He shared events impacting the life expectancy of the landfill. 



14 

 

 
 

He shared the ongoing efforts being done to improve the life of the landfill. (two slides)  

 

 

 
 

 

 
 



15 

 

Mr. Roberson shared the Life of Landfill (LOL) study, which was completed recently. 

 

 
He shared on-site initiatives that may extend the life of the landfill. He said lowering the 

volume of waste collected is important.  

 

 
He said the Material Stabilized Earth (MSE) Berm and the lateral landfill expansion is 

efficient, but expensive. 

 

 



16 

 

Mr. Roberson shared potential landfill initiatives. 

 

 
He shared off-site initiatives that may extend the life of the landfill. He said recycling 

centers greatly reduce the amount of waste being put into the landfill, but it is difficult to 

find a place to dispose of some items such as styro foam. He said mattresses cannot be 

completely buried in the landfill and finding a way to recycle them would be very helpful.  

 

 

 
He shared information on commercial and multi-family recycling. He said the waste 

audit will be done later this year. He said there are grants available to companies to 

encourage recycling. 



17 

 

 
 

Mr. Roberson said there are many options for organics. He said composting is very 

helpful.  

 

 

 
 

He shared initiatives that could be implemented to encourage recycling. He said C&D 

recycling is difficult to dispose of due to the size and volume. 

 



18 

 

 
 

Mr. Roberson shared a summary of the Life Of Landfill study. (3 slides) 

 

 

 
 

 

 



19 

 

 
 

 
He shared the recommended next steps. (2 slides) He said staff has started assessing 

future options. He said a multi-county facility may be a good option. 

 



20 

 

 
He said there are other options and he asked for input from the committee. 

 

 
Commissioner Calabria asked about costs to pursue green and yellow items. Mr. 

Roberson said there are costs associated with them and that would be the next step. He 

will bring the cost information back to the committee in the near future. 

 

Mr. Tim Maloney, Director, Planning, Development & Inspections, shared proposed 

amendments to the Water, Sewer and Road Financial Policy. He said staff created  

specific changes for the boards consideration. 

 

 
 



21 

 

He shared information that will be helpful to the commissioners prior to taking action on 

the revised policy. 

 

 

 
 

He shared information about recent road repairs that have taken place since the 

inception of the policy. 

 

 
He said 30 percent of the Banks Pointe home owners paid for their repairs in full prior to 

the 30-day expiration date.  

 

Mr. Maloney shared information staff has learned during the process. He said staff will 

stress that a 75 percent vote does not guarantee the project will happen. 

 



22 

 

 
He shared suggestions for developing a solution.   

 

 
Mr. Maloney shared suggestions on items that need to be stated more clearly in the 

policy. 

 

 
 

He shared information on the financing terms. 

 



23 

 

 
Mr. Maloney recommended a formula to be used to determine the assessment period 

for future projects. 

 

 
 

He shared how Banks Pointe would have looked with the proposed formula applied. 

 

 
 

 

 

 



24 

 

He shared the staff recommendation. 

 

 
Ms. Rogers said the language was written in a way that is easy for residents to 

understand. 

 

Commissioner Burns asked if the changes would be applied to the two projects that 

have already completed the petition process. Ms. Rogers said the board would make 

that decision. Commissioner Burns said it is important for residents to know that the 

county is not obligated to provide funding. He thanked staff for their work on preparing 

the policy revisions.  

 

Commissioner Calabria asked if these projects would cause financial hardship on some 

residents. Mr. Maloney said the information is provided to the residents, and it is up to 

the community to decide if they want to proceed. Mr. Maloney said there is also a 

process for them to apply for hardship treatment.  

 

Commissioner Calabria asked if financial hardship treatment could be determined 

during the petition process. Mr. Maloney said that is not possible at this time. Ms. 

Rogers said if the community approves the petition at 75 percent, the other 25 percent 

of residents are also obligated to comply.  

 

Mr. Maloney said there is risk involved with all projects because the cost cannot be 

determined until the project is put out to bid.  

 

Commissioner Burns asked for clarification on water and sewer issues policy revisions. 

Mr. Maloney said these policy revisions only applies to the road section of the policy. 

 

Mr. Mark Forestieri, Director, Facilities, Design and Construction, shared information on 

the Wake County Native Plants Initiative. 



25 

 

 
 

He shared reasons for using native species. 

 

 
 

He shared a definition of a native plant. 

 

 
 

 



26 

 

Mr. Forestieri shared a definition of a non-native plant. 

 

 
 

He shared a definition of an invasive plant. 

 

 
 

He shared the current Wake County standards regarding the use of native plants. (Two 

slides) He said the county policy prohibits the use of non-native plants in new 

construction.  



27 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Mr. Forestieri shared current projects that are using native plants. He said native plants 

are used on all county projects. 

 



28 

 

 
 

He shared the recommended process for updating the native plant criteria. 

 

 
 

 

He shared the proposed plan for updating the native plant initiative. He said there was a 

memo released last year by the North Carolina Nursery and Landscape Association 

stating that there is a shortage of native plants. He said in those instances, substitutes 

are permitted. 

 

 
 



29 

 

Commissioner Hutchinson thanked staff for their work. He said the goal is to retain 

native plants across the county. He would like to hold a press conference to get the 

information out to the community. Commissioner Burns said there is work to be done 

before a press conference is held. 

 

Mr. Ben Canada, Assistant to the County Manager, said the next meeting will be held 

July 9th, 2018. 

 

There being no further business, it was moved by Commissioner Burns to adjourn the 

meeting at 6:15 p.m. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
______________________________ 
Michelle L. Cerett 
Executive Assistant 
Wake County Commissioners 
 


